### <u>Minutes</u>

## CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



14 March 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

		Committee Members Present: Councillor Jane Palmer (Chairman), Councillor Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Judy Kelly (in place of Councillor Jem Dudcu), Councillor Dominic Gilham, Councillor Becky Haggar, Councillor Allan Kauffman, Councillor Jagjit Singh and Councillor Jan Sweeting and Tony Little (Roman Catholic Diocesan Representative)
		LBH Officers Present: Laurie Baker (Interim Head of School Improvement/Education Quality & Strategy), Dan Kennedy (Head of Business Performance, Policy & Standards) and Anisha Teji (Democratic Services Officer)
ľ	62.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
		Apologies were received from Councillor John Oswell and Councillor Jem Duducu, who was substituted by Councillor Judy Kelly.
•	63.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
		There were no declarations of interest.
ŀ	- 1	MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ARVANCE OF UDGENT (Asset & Vanco)
	64.	MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 3)
	64.	There were none.
-	65.	, <del>c</del>
		There were none.  TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
		There were none.  TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	65.	There were none.  TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)  It was confirmed that all items were in Part I and would be heard in public.  TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 MARCH 2017 (Agenda
-	65.	There were none.  TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)  It was confirmed that all items were in Part I and would be heard in public.  TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 MARCH 2017 (Agenda Item 5)

# 67. CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - MAJOR REVIEW OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY'S CURRENT AND FUTURE RELATIONSHIP WITH ACADEMIES AND FREE SCHOOLS (Agenda Item 6)

The Committee noted that there had been no response to the Local Authority's request for information and comment via the Head Teacher's survey from the Chief Executives of any local Multi Academy Trusts.

Following the meeting on 1 March 2017, some Committee Members met and discussed the results from the head teacher surveys. The Committee Members concluded that the surveys highlighted some important issues which could be addressed. There was a clear indication that many schools were happy with the services provided by Local Authority. An example of these included the service of admissions, the SEND team and safeguarding. The results of the surveys received so far will be incorporated into the final major review report.

The Committee considered recommendations for the major review. The Committee discussed recommendations around the themes of having a single point of contact; the relationship between the Local Authority and the Regional Schools Commissioner; professional development training for school governors; school outcome performance; conversion transistion and school improvement frameworks.

During the Committee's discussions, the following points were reported:

- A single point of contact for school enquiries would be good and useful. It was noted that the nature of enquiries varied which meant that it would be difficult to have a central contact point that covered every matter raised. Practically, most schools knew who to contact for assistance. Other boroughs published a list of contact details for officers for the different types of enquiries raised.
- There was question around the stability of the administrative capacity in overseeing the single point of contact.
- Difficult and sensitive messages are easier to deliver when they are done early and clearly. This ensures transparency and openness.
- The bi-monthly head teacher briefings should remain as they are viewed as being useful by headteachers.
- The Local Authority had invested time in developing the Schools Strategic Partnership Board which was proving to be a positive piece of work and should play be key role in driving improvements in education standards in Hillingdon.
- Not all maintained schools had made a decision about converting to academies to date. It is recognised that there will need to be sufficient support offered so that maintained schools can call on resources to explore or support conversion if they deem it right for their setting.
- The Regional Schools Commissioner has a limited resource and a large number of schools to oversee. It is necessary for the The Regional Schools Commissioner to be clear about their role, responsibilities and their ability to access and delegate resources to effect improvement in academies.
- It is recognised that the quality of governance varies in both maintained and academy/free schools throughout the Borough.
- The Committee was concerned that training for school govenors is not compulsory and highlighted that the ability to act as a critical friend is important.
- Outstanding governance is key for school improvement and the Council recognises the importance of recruiting and retaining high quality governors.
- There is clear progress being made in terms of school attainment levels, particularly at Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2. It was noted that areas of concerns related to Key

- Stage 4 and Key Stage 5.
- When results are published, and as outlined in the current Hillingdon Schools Improvement Plan, the Local Authority uses risk assessment processes and published results and inspections to target support and challenge activities in schools. If there are concerns in maintained schools the Local Authority works closely with them. In academies, concerns are raised the Regional Schools Commissioner. Generally the pace at which schools improve depends on the way they engage with the services available to support them and this is often dependent on the quality of leadership and governance in the school.
- The Committee noted that the Borough's School Improvement Conferences were open at no charge to every head teacher and Chair of Governors in the Borough.
- The Committee heard concerns that there is some variability in the quality of engagement of schools with borough priorities. It is recognised that academy conversion supports autonomy for schools though and that collaboration with other schools and partners is a choice for those schools who convert.
- The Committee discussed potential models of delivery for the Borough and agreed that there is a need to clarify the method of delivery of support to improve standards from September 2017.

#### **RESOLVED -**

- 1) That the Chairman of the Childrens Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee would send the final major review report to head teachers and the Chairs of governing bodies to ensure transparency and openness;
- 2) Additional information on what was raised with the Regional Schools Commissioner in relation to the two schools in the Borough not performing to the standards expected be presented to the Committee; and
- 3) That the Major Review Draft Final Report be presented to the Committee for approval before going to Cabinet for consideration.

## 68. CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES (CAMHS) (Agenda Item 7)

The Committee noted that an updated report had been submitted by the Hillingdon CCG, however no officers were not able to attend. The Committee deferred the agenda item to the next meeting.

#### **RESOLVED -**

- 1. That the agenda item be deferred to the next meeting on 12 April 2017; and
- 2. That the Chairman of the Childrens Young People & Learning write a letter requesting an officer from the CCG to attend and present the report.

#### 69. **CABINET FORWARD PLAN** (Agenda Item 8)

The Committee noted that the School Capital Programme was going well. It commended the positive news that the Local Authority had offered every resident child a school place.

#### **RESOLVED -**

1) That the cabinet forward plan was noted.

#### 70. **WORK PROGRAMME** (Agenda Item 9)

The Committee noted that the Service Improvement Plan was signed off in March 2016 and since then work had been conducted as "business as usual". Following consultation with the Chairman of the POC, it was agreed that childrens' work could be scrutinised as part of the rest of the Local Authority's work. Officers are working on a Service Improvement Plan for 2017/2018.

#### **RESOLVED -**

- 1) That the work programme be noted; and
- 2) That there is an update on the Service Improvement Plan as part of the 2017/2018 work programme.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.11 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.